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	LOCATION INFORMATION
(See fields below)
	Photo:
Date:
Source:
	View of the front (northwest) elevation of Clayton Farm.
November 1995
Bruce Callow & Associates Pty Ltd

	HCWA Reference No.
	HCWA  No.
	Other Reference No.
	MDG Site No. 79

	Name of Place
	Clayton Farm

	Other Name (1)
	

	Other Name (2)
	

	Location/Site/Address:
	

	Street Number
	27
	Street Name
	Clayton Road (west)

	Suburb/Town
	Helena Valley

	Other Locational descriptor (text)
	

	Local Government Authority
	Shire of Mundaring

	Map References: (use fields below)
	

	Map Name
	Perth BG34
	Map scale 
	1 : 20 000

	Rectangle
	47 57
	Northing
	
	Easting
	

	Area (ha)
	

	OWNERSHIP & LAND DESCRIPTION 

	Owner 
(use fields below):
	NB. "Status" - ownership type ie: freehold, vestee, lessee, occupier). 
Use "Item N0." to link owner & land parcel if more than one of each.

	Owner
	Address
	Phone/fax
	Status
	Item No.

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Land Description  (use fields below):

	Reserve No.
	Lot/Location No.
	Plan/Diagram
	Vol/Folio
	Item No.

	
	
	
	
	

	DESCRIPTION:

	Construction Date (1)
	1861

	Construction Date (2)
	

	Source/Details
	Date over front door

	Site Type (see HCWA ‘Type’ list)
	0103

	Use(s) of Place (use fields below):
	

	Original
	Residence 
	Present
	Residence
	Other
	

	Architect/Designer (1)
	Richard Smith

	Architect/Designer (2)
	

	Other Associated Persons 
	




	Description (cont’d)

	Construction Materials  (use fields below):

	Walls
	brick
	render to lower half
	

	Roof
	corrugated iron over original shingles
	flat metal decking

	Other
	
	
	

	Modifications
	rear flat roofed addition

	Condition
	very good

	Integrity (how much of the original fabric is intact? - use text field below):

	very high - although legitimate adaptation over the years has diminished some original uses of elements 

	Description: (Describe the place and its setting):

	
Clayton Farm is located on an urban farm property above the north bank of the river in the Helena Valley.  The retention of horse paddocks around the house has kept the property in a contextual setting as adjacent land has gradually been subdivided for housing.  The property is approached along a driveway from Samson Street, on the west, giving a full view of the two-storey house in a garden setting. Formerly the house was approached from the north.  

The property still retains a brick outbuilding, possibly servants' quarters or schoolroom, which is raised several steps above ground level over a brick cellar.  More recent outbuildings in the form of garages and workshop are sympathetically built of unpainted weatherboard and corrugated iron.  Several old wells remain on the property, including a brick lined well some 5-6 metres deep to the north of the house which is thought to have supplied stock and washing water and is never dry.  A timber-lined well/soak in a paddock to the south is thought to have supplied excellent qualitydrinking water.  A third well, brick lined and also continuous in supply, existed close to the river, but has now been filled in.

The two storey clay brick house, with surrounding verandas, is an important example (as well as one of few remaining in such excellent condition) of the simple Colonial Georgian character of the early days of the colony.  Decoration is minimal and simple.  The veranda is probably original but could have been a very early addition, prior to which possibly only a typical Georgian entry porch may have graced the front of the house.  Decoration externally is limited to the incorporation of diamond shapes into the bonding of the brickwork between windows on the upper walls.  The two end diamonds are of darker bricks forming a contrast in the wall.  Etched, unobtrusively, into the bricks at the centre of each diamond are the date 1861 and the initials of Richard Smith and his family members.  

The original section of the house has four rooms; two either side of a front door and central hall which incorporates a narrow stair to the first floor.  To the rear, on the ground floor a circa late 1960's flat roof addition has provided additional living space and extended the house out to meet what was previously the separate brick (now rendered) kitchen pavilion, (now bathroom).  The walls of the extension are built of matching recycled bricks and it has been carefully integrated despite its flat roof.  It could be argued the extension would have been more sympathetic with a pitched roof, however this may have been at the expense of greater interference with the original fabric and the flat roof now serves to identify the new from the original work.   The lower half of the external walls have been rendered to control fretting bricks which are quite soft; however, the problem may have been exacerbated by the earlier replacement of the timber veranda with concrete which could have aggravated rising damp problems.




	Description:   cont'd

Of the four original rooms on the ground floor, the two to the rear are single storey and form a leanto against the front two-storey section.  The two storey section of the house is only one room deep, comprising two bedrooms on the first floor, one either side of the stair over similar size rooms on the ground floor.  The various rooms have changed use over the years with different owners and adaptations.  However, their integrity remains intact whilst their authenticity, which may be less evident, can still be reasonably ascertained.  Original shingles are still exposed on the underside of the rear leanto roof, which has never had a ceiling lining.  According to the current owners (since 1968), the two front rooms on both floors originally had low 'mini-orb' ceilings which have now been replaced with flat plasterboard and coved cornices.  Internal doorways are low and some of the mullioned casement windows have larger panes at the centre and smaller (narrower) panes to the outside.



History of Place / Site: 

Clayton Farm was part of Helena Location 20b, which in July 1830, was assigned to Henry Camfield, who had arrived at Fremantle on 12th October 1829, on the 'Caroline'.

During Camfield’s absence on his other property 'Burrswood', his first lessee, Clayton is said to have begun to clear and fence Clayton Farm as required for freehold title to be issued.  This was done in March 1842.  In December 1837, James Drummond resided on Clayton Farm and is thought to have exchanged his Helena location for an equal quantity at Toodyay.  Later, Camfield’s former indentured servant, Richard Smith, and his wife Mary (nee Bransby-Kirkby) leased the property prior to Camfield’s move to Albany in 1847.  In 1854, Richard Smith who is said to have resided in Swan Street Guildford, purchased the property from Camfield.

By 1861, the Smith family had utilised Richard’s carpentry skills and constructed a 2 storey, brick house, using hand-sawn jarrah shingles for the roof and local clay bricks for the walls.  Brick making in this area continued until the 1970’s.  Typical of the period, the kitchen and its baking ovens were constructed separately at the rear of the main house.

Buildings on the farm included a stable, farmhands’ cottage, with attached coach-house, barns and pigpens.  During the time the Smith family was associated with Clayton Farm, they grew oats and  wheat, raised pigs, cows and poultry, and  established vineyards and orchards.

Richard and Mary Smith’s descendants became well known in the wider hills districts.  Son Alfred and grandson Thomas, established and maintained the sawmill at the locality known as Smiths Mill which, in 1915, became Glen Forrest (Sites 88 & 153).  Daughter Naomi married Thomas Byfield, one of the horticultural pioneers of the Mahogany Creek and Mundaring area (Site 186).  

Following the death of Richard’s widow Mary in 1891, son Alfred and his unmarried brother George, ran the farm until it was sold in 1906 to Mrs Katherine Sampson of Fremantle, who sub-divided the farm and sold it for small orchard lots.  After a slow start these were gradually purchased in the post-World War I period.  The Smith’s house was eventually used by the Manager for Elder Smith & Goldsbrough Mort’s nearby holding paddocks.  

In 1968, the house was bought privately and restored, and in October 1972, was the venue for a Smith Family reunion.    





	SIGNIFICANCE

	Historic theme (s) 
	Population settlement and mobility; Occupations, People & Events.

	Statement of Significance (use field below - to be completed by Assessor)

	Clayton Farm has very high social, historic and aesthetic significance for the Shire of Mundaring and State as one of few remaining examples of early colonial lifestyle and building.  Its aesthetic significance is advanced considerably in having survived on a larger 'urban' farm lot which also provides an interpretation of its social and historic context.


	Recommendation/Conservation Strategy  (To be completed by Assessor)

	Clayton Farm requires the highest level of protection and warrants assessment for Entry onto the State Register of Heritage Places and the owners provided with the maximum encouragement to conserve the significance of the place. Listing of the place may assist in qualifying it for grants or assistance to carry out Conservation Plans, urgent works or restoration.  Assistance available under the Heritage Act should be assessed in its ability to ensure the house remains on a large parcel of land and the integrity of the property and its fabric is protected into the future. The compilation of a Conservation Plan, to guide future alterations, additions and adaptations is also to be encouraged.



	OTHER INFORMATION

	Bibliography: (cite sources used below)
	Refer also to Bibliography-Appendix

	Elliot, I. ibid. pp. 216-7, 224; MHHS, Elliot Research Notes on “Helena Valley”, and Smith Family history. Information from current owners July 1996.

	Listing and Assessment:
	

	Assessor (s) Name 
	Assessor (s) Address/Phone

	Bruce Callow & Assoc Pty Ltd
	69 Grt Northern Hwy or PO Box 1377, Midland  6056
Tel. (09) 250 2296  Fx. (09) 274 6592 

	Nominee’s Name (optional)
	Nominee’s  Address (optional)

	 MHHS

	

	State Register of Heritage Places:
	(y/n)  
	Date:

	Classified by the National Trust
	(y/n) recorded
	Date:  02/08/71

	Register of the National Estate
	(y/n)
	Date:

	Local Town Planning Scheme
	(y/n)
	Date:
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